SUMMARY MINUTES PUBLISHED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS MONDAY, APRIL 24, 2017; 7:00 P.M.

1. Call to Order

The Council convened in Regular Session in the Council Chambers, City Hall Building, at 7:00 p.m., Monday, April 24, 2017. The Meeting was called to order by Mayor Renner.

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

The Meeting was opened by Pledging Allegiance to the Flag followed by a moment of silent prayer.

3. Remain Standing for a Moment of Silent Prayer

4. Roll Call

Mayor Renner directed the City Clerk to call the roll and the following members of Council answered present:

Aldermen: Kevin Lower, David Sage, Mboka Mwilambwe, Amelia Buragas, Scott Black, Karen Schmidt, Joni Painter, Diana Hauman (Absent), Jim Fruin, and Mayor Tari Renner.

Staff Present: David Hales, City Manager; Steve Rasmussen, Assistant City Manager; Jeffrey Jurgens; Corporation Counsel, Cherry L. Lawson; City Clerk, Brendan Heffner, Chief of Police; Bob Yehl, Water Director; Scott Sprouls, IS Director; Patti-Lynn Silva, Finance Director, Jim Karch, Public Works Director; and other City Staff were also present.

5. Recognition/Appointments

- A. Recognition of the outgoing City elected officials: Aldermen Kevin Lower and Jim Fruin
- B. Proclamation declaring April 28, 2017, as "Arbor Day".
- C. Proclamation declaring May 7 May 13, 2017 as "Municipal Clerk's Week".
- D. Appointment of Jay Groves to the Bloomington-Normal Airport Authority.

6. Public Comment

Aaron Len	Karen Kensella	Neil Gridley	Julian Westerhut
Sue Feldcamp	Surena Fish	Brad Williams	Teresa Beitz
Lea Cline	Bruce Meeks	Sherry Graehling	Alton Franklin
Gary Justis			

7. Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Consent Agenda are approved with one motion, and is provided in BOLD, and items that Council pull from the Consent Agenda for discussion are listed with a notation Pulled from the Consent Agenda.

Motion by Alderman Schmidt, seconded by Alderman Mwilambwe, that the Consent Agenda be approved, with the exception of Item Nos. 7M, 7T, and 7V.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: None.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 7A: Consideration of approving the Minutes of the April 10, 2017 Regular City Council Meeting. (*Recommend that the reading of the minutes be dispensed with and the minutes approved as printed.*)

The following was presented:

Item 7B: Consideration of Approving Bills, Payroll, Procurement Card Purchases, and Electronic Transfers in the amount of \$6,352,603.51.

The following was presented:

Item 7C: Consideration of Approving Appointment to Bloomington-Normal Airport Authority.

The following was presented:

Item 7D: Consideration of authorizing amendments to the FY 2016 and FY 2017 Capital Lease Equipment Lists.

The following was presented:

Item 7E: Consideration of approving the purchase of one (1) 2017 Ford F350 with a Utility Service body through the capital lease amendment seen on Consent Agenda Item D for the Facilities Management Division of Administration.

The following was presented:

Item 7F: Consideration of approving the purchase of wireless networking equipment to be installed within the US Cellular Coliseum through the capital lease amendment seen on Consent Agenda Item D.

The following was presented:

Item 7G: Consideration of Approving a Contract with Stark Excavating for the FY 2017 Pump Station Improvements, (Bid # 2017-36) contingent upon the approval of year end budget amendments identified on the regular agenda item 8F.

The following was presented:

Item 7H: Consideration of approving a bid (ReBid #2017-38) and Contract from CAD Construction, Inc. for replacement of the Lake Bloomington Water Treatment Plant Annex Roof.

The following was presented:

Item 7I: Consideration of rejecting all Bids (Bid #2017-39) for Demolition of the City Hall Annex.

The following was presented:

Item 7J: Consideration of the analysis of bids and award of a contract with Stark Excavating, Inc. for the Lake Bloomington Fill Site Restoration Improvements, Bid No. 2017-43

The following was presented:

Item 7K: Consideration of approving a Request for Proposal (RFP #2017-31) and Agreement with for Golf Professional Instructional Services at the city golf courses between the City and Rick Sellers Golf.

The following was presented:

Item 7L: Consideration of approving a Request for Proposal (RFP #2017-44) and Brush Disposal Agreement between the City and T. Kirk Brush, Inc.

The following was presented:

Item 7M: Consideration of a Resolution supporting rail-banking of Norfolk & Southern right-of-way from Mansfield, IL to Bloomington, IL. (*Pulled from the Consent Agenda*)

Alderman Lower stated he was going to vote no and did not feel it was the appropriate time to be going down the avenue in which we are going to take on more responsibilities financially.

RESOLUTION NO. 2017 - 12

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING RAIL-BANKING OF NORFOLK & SOUTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM MANSFIELD, IL TO BLOOMINGTON, IL

Motion by Alderman Black, seconded by Alderman Schmidt, that a resolution supporting the rail-banking of Norfolk & Southern right-of-way from Mansfield, IL to Bloomington, IL be passed, and that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: Alderman Lower.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 7N: Consideration of a Resolution approving a cost modification associated with the Professional Engineering Services Agreement with Hanson Professional Services, Inc. for Professional Engineering Design Services for Lake Bloomington and Evergreen Lake Emergency Action Plan Preparation, RFQ No. 2014 - 23.

RESOLUTION NO. 2017 -13

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF \$24,200.00 IN THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON AND HANSON PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC.

The following was presented:

Item 70: Consideration of approving a Resolution waiving the formal bidding process and enter into a contract for the purchase of Replacement Parks, Recreation and Cultural Arts Management Software with Maximum Solutions, Inc. in the amount of \$32,700.

RESOLUTION NO. 2017 – 14

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING WAIVING THE TECHNICAL BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF RECREATION SOFTWARE AND HAS IDENTIFIED MAXGALAXY SOFTWARE FROM MAXIMUM SOLUTIONS

The following was presented:

Item 7P: Consideration to approve the grant agreements for the Illinois Housing Development Authority's Single Family Rehabilitation Program (IHDA SFR) and Abandoned Property Program (IHDA APP) in the amount of \$236,250 by Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign and submit the agreements to IHDA.

<u>RECOMMENDATION:</u> That Council approve the Resolutions identified below allowing the Mayor to sign and submit the IHDA SFR and IHDA APP grant agreements:

- 1. A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Illinois Housing Development Authority's Single Family Rehabilitation Program; and
- 2. A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Illinois Housing Development Authority's Abandoned Residential Property Municipal Relief Program

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-<u>15</u>

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT FROM THE ILLINOIS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY'S SINGLE FAMILY REHABILITATION PROGRAM

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-<u>16</u>

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT FROM THE ILLINOIS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY'S ABANDONED RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY MUNICIPAL RELIEF PROGRAM.

The following was presented:

Item 7Q: Consideration of Resolutions approving grant agreements for the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency's (IHPA) CLG Matching Grant Program.

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-<u>17</u>

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT FROM THE ILLINOIS HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY CLG MATCHING GRANT PROGRAM

The following was presented:

Item 7R: Consideration of an Intergovernmental Agreement by and Between the Illinois Office of the Comptroller and the City of Bloomington Providing for the City to Participate in the Comptroller's Local Debt recovery program.

The following was presented:

Item 7S: Consideration of adopting an Ordinance for Case SP-03-17, a petition requesting approval of a Special Use Permit for Duplexes in the R-1C, High Density Single Family Residential District for the property located at 603 Seminary Ave.

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-27

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A DUPLEX in the R-1C DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT: 603 Seminary Avenue

The following was presented:

Item 7T: Consideration of a Resolution initiating the rezoning of 204 N. Allin Street, and of 800, 801, 802, 803, 804, and 806 W. Washington Street from R-2, Mixed Residential District, and C-2, Neighborhood Shopping District, to B-2, General Business Service District. (*Deferred to the next Council Meeting Agenda.*)

The following was presented:

Item 7U: Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Bloomington City Code Chapter 39 Taxation.

ORDINANCE 2017 - 28

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE CITY CODE ON LOCAL TAXES

The following was presented:

Item 7V: Consideration of an Ordinance approving the Salary of the City Manager. (*Pulled from the Consent Agenda*)

Alderman Lower stated that he does not disagree that in many instances our City Manager has done an outstanding job with many things; however, we are continuing to disregard our current economic situation in our community and we are setting a precedent for the rest of the employees of the City. He stated he would be voting no though he deserves it.

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-29

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARY FOR THE CITY MANAGER

Motion by Alderman Schmidt, seconded by Alderman Painter that the Ordinance Approving the Salary for the City Manager and Providing for Retroactive Payment be approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the Ordinance.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Aves: Aldermen Sage, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: Alderman Lower.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 7W: Consideration of an Ordinance Budget Amendment approving Actuarial Valuation for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Services in the amount of \$9,000 with Arthur J. Gallagher as a limited source provider.

ORDINANCE NO. 2017 – <u>30</u>

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2018

The following was presented:

Item 7X: Consideration of an Ordinance Budget Amendment approving Actuarial Valuation for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Services in the amount of \$9,000 with Arthur J. Gallagher as a limited source provider. Duplicate agenda item

The following was presented:

Item 7Y: Consideration of accepting a bid (Bid #2017-42) from CAD Construction, Inc. for construction of the Police Training Facility Addition in the amount of \$537,100.

8. "Regular Agenda"

The following was presented:

Item 8A: Consideration of an Ordinance Waiving the Building Permit Fees for the McLean County Law and Justice Center expansion at 104 W. Front Street. (*Presentation by Tom Dabareiner, Community Development Director 5 minutes, Council discussion 5 minutes.*)

Mr. Dabareiner stated McLean County government and the Public Building Commission are looking to expand and renovate the jail and the value of that project is about 36 million dollars. They are requesting a fee waiver for the building fees. The staff has endorsed the concept of a fee waiver for approximately \$100,000, largely because we are moving public money from one government to another government.

Alderman Lower asked Mr. Dabareiner to provide a rough outline of those fees that if it were a private entity.

Mr. Dabareiner stated that it is based really largely on the value of the project where a lot of our fees are based. The City would look to waive approximately \$100,000 to \$110,000 in building fees minus the \$9,300 + for the contracted review.

Alderman Schmidt asked why the City would not have taken this out of its portion of the sales tax that we are providing for this project.

Mr. Dabareiner stated that that was not really his field to answer.

Mr. Hales stated the quarter percent of the sales tax increase is already earmarked for this project. Right now with their budget for the project, they are seeing a very tight financial situation. Even with the money the City contributed with the sales tax, they are just dealing with a very tight budget on the project and seeking some additional assistance by waiving some of those internal costs that we would be absorbing as we continue to review and do inspections. He stated that Bill Wasson, County Administrative, was present and could better answer that question.

Mr. Wasson stated that there has been a general history of fee waivers that have been provided for public projects within the community for public good. We will be paying the detention fees on this project.

ORDINANCE NO. 2017 - 31

AN ORDINANCE WAIVING VARIOUS BUILDING FEES ASSOCIATED WITH THE MCLEAN COUNTY LAW & JUSTICE CENTER EXPANSION AT 104 E. FRONT STREET

Motion by Alderman Black, seconded by Alderman Lower, that an ordinance waiving the building permit fees for the McLean County Law and Justice Center expansion at 104 W Front Street be adopted and that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Lower, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: None.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 8B: Providing staff with direction on repairing, replacing, or resurfacing Monroe St from Clinton St to Robinson St. (Presentation by David Hales, City Manager and Jim Karch, Public Works Director 5 minutes and Council discussion 10 minutes.)

Mr. Karch provided an overview of Monroe Street resurfacing. City staff originally received petition from 14 residents along Monroe in this area. There are about 24 homes in here. The request was for the City to resurface Monroe between Clinton and Robinson. We received additional feedback from citizens. That feedback allowed us to bring this brick-street plan back to Council. The section of Monroe is in deteriorated condition such that it needs to be restored completely or needs to be resurfaced. Sewer repairs in this area have made this street significantly worse than it was nine years ago. Staff is committed to revisiting the area next year. He expressed appreciation to the Historic Planning Commission, and acknowledged previous working relationship with them. If we do this, it is important as Council to determine how that gets paid for.

Alderman Buragas asked about the graft that was presented.

Alderman Lower stated that soil compaction, soil type, how we prepare that really, on both types of streets, impacts the costs and the longevity of both.

Mr. Hales stated that if you look at these options, it would be very beneficial for the City to go through a process where we can bid out a brick street to obtain current cost in the present day.

Alderman Black stated it does require some analysis. He stated that there is a lot of evidence to suggest that brick streets improve a home's value. Residents ask what can we do to make our historic core look better and what can we do to invest in our historic core?

Alderman Schmidt stated that she was very supportive of doing the brick work on East Monroe Street. She would like to see the Historic Preservation Commission get involved and not just by taking the brick street plan back to them. It is more than brick streets. It is our curbing; it is our carriage walks and all the other historical structures.

Alderman Sage stated, expressed concern that the City has not put out an RFP for the work, and he needed some help understanding the logic where we would commit to something that we think is a high end estimate at half a million dollars without at least even having a quote as some basis of good decision making. These are estimates at best and they may come in less, they could come in more. Council voted to approve our FY18 budget at the last meeting, and he is troubled that this was not included in budget. Is this something that would be pulled out of the unreserved fund? There are two open-ended questions and this is the logic behind moving forward with this without having some reasonable estimation of cost by way of quote and where does this money come from?

Mr. Hales stated that even as you look at these three motions, none of the three commits the City to a contract that would actually move ahead with reconstructing Monroe as a brick street. All three motions really just set the stage to moving in the direction of one way or another, 1, 2 or 3 getting bids. Then the City can come back to the Council and give you a definitive cost to rebrick that street. Secondly, staff tried to make ensure that if there was a street that was little different than a routine resurfacing – asphalt resurfacing on top of an asphalt street, we would remove it and have that for separate discussion of the Council.

Mayor Renner stated that essentially this would have to come back to us once we got firm numbers anyway.

Alderman Buragas stated that it might be helpful to point out that these numbers are not just guesses. They are Springfield's.

Mr. Karch stated that they had \$6 million dollars they committed over three years.

Alderman Buragas stated that those are the actual bid numbers they received for restoring their brick streets. They had a lot more than we did.

Alderman Fruin stated that we have identified one block and if Monroe is the block that is most needed, then great but we have three and a half miles of brick streets, so this Council going forward is going to have to have some kind of strategy plan. With that additional cost comes either offsetting new revenue or cutting expenses or whatever the case might be.

<u>RECOMMENDATION:</u> That the Council make a determination regarding the potential resurfacing/repair of Monroe Street from Clinton Street to Robinson Street by approving one of the following motions:

<u>MOTION ALTERNATE 1</u>: That City staff be directed to move forward with design, planning, and bidding for the repair of brick or replacement of brick with new brick.

<u>MOTION ALTERNATE 2</u>: That City staff be directed to move forward with the inclusion of Monroe Street in the 2018 Street & Alley Repair Program and that the City Manager and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

<u>MOTION ALTERNATE 3</u>: That a decision on whether Monroe Street should be included in the 2018 Street & Alley Repair Program or its brick repaired or replaced be tabled and brought back to the Council with more data on the costs and benefits associated with brick streets, and bring back the Brick Street Master Plan for final consideration and approval.

Motion by Alderman Buragas, seconded by Alderman Schmidt, that staff be directed to move forward with design, planning, and bidding for the repair of brick or replacement of brick with new brick on East Monroe, and empower the Historic Preservation Commission to take the 2009 Plan to come up with an implementation structure and strategy with a recommendation from them as to how the City move forward to ensure the project is not completed in a piece-meal fashion; but having a comprehensive plan to effectively address brick roads in the Bloomington community.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Lower, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: None.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 8C: Consideration of Approving:

(Presentation by Jim Karch, Public Works Director 5 minutes, Council discussion 10 minutes.)

- a. Contract with Rowe Construction for the FY 2018 General Resurfacing Program, (Bid # 2017-23).
- b. Contract with Rowe Construction for the FY 2018 Street & Alley Repair Program, (Bid # 2017-24).
- c. Contract with J. G. Stewart Contractors, Inc. for FY 2018 Sidewalk Replacement and Handicap Ramp Program, (Bid #2017-25).

Mr. Karch stated, we try to bid the street and resurfacing contract early on in the construction season so that we can complete the resurfacing work by November 17th. The sidewalk work is also bid in tandem with that so that we can complete the majority of it during the construction season. This year we have broken up the contract – general resurfacing, street and alley repair – we have broken those a part to encourage some extra bidders beyond just one. We have not been receiving more bids than one over the past few years.

Alderman Lower asked, from a cost standpoint, when we bid out something like this, are we working with the County and are we working with Normal so that we have consistency in the amount that we are asking our contractor if it is a single contractor to do so that there is not an ebb and flow in the amount of work that he is actually performing on an annual basis.

Motion by Alderman Painter, seconded by Alderman Lower, that 1) the unit prices from Rowe Construction for the FY 2018 General Resurfacing Program in the amount of \$2,080,000.00, be accepted, the contract approved; 2) the unit prices from Rowe Construction for the FY 2018 Street & Alley Repair Program in the amount of \$1,590,762.00, be accepted, the contract approved; and 3) the unit prices from J. G. Stewart Contractors, Inc., for the FY 2018 Sidewalk Replacement and Handicap Ramp Program in the amount of \$820,000 be accepted, the contract be approved, and the City Manager and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Lower, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: None.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 8D: Consideration of approving a Professional Services Contract with CDM Smith, Inc. for Professional Engineering Services related to the Water Department Infrastructure Master Plan, (RFQ #2017-26). (Presentation by Bob Yehl, Water Department Director 10 minutes, Council discussion 10 minutes.)

Mr. Yehl stated, the Master Plan is a Priority-Based Comprehensive Asset Management Plan. It will help us determine the level of service for our customers by diving deep into our existing infrastructure in determining what the priorities are moving forward. It will provide a 20-year plan as we move ahead.

Alderman Lower asked Mr. Yehl to provide the Council with the number of miles of deliverable infrastructure the City has, and how quickly that decays and the forecast for what we really should be looking at doing.

Mr. Yehl stated we have approximately 350 plus miles of distribution mains. We also have a number of mains that run in from the water treatment plant to town. If you take even \$100 a linear foot to install that, it is hundreds of millions of dollars of infrastructure, just for the mains themselves.

Motion by Alderman Painter, seconded by Alderman Schmidt that the Professional Services Contract with CDM Smith, Inc. for Professional Engineering Services related to the Water Department Infrastructure Master Plan in the amount not to exceed \$431,600.00 be approved and the City Manager and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Lower, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: None.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 8E: Consideration of approving a Professional Services Contract with GreenPlay, LLC for Professional Planning and Consulting Services related to the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Arts Comprehensive Master Plan, (RFP#2017-27.) (Recommend that the Professional Services Contract with GreenPlay, LLC for Professional Planning and Consulting Services related to the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Arts Comprehensive Master Plan in the amount not to exceed \$114,999.00 be approved and the City Manager and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.) (Presentation by Jay Tetzloff, Parks, Recreation and Cultural Director 10 minutes, Council discussion 10 minutes.)

Mr. Tetzloff stated, there are a total of six companies that are coming together as a team. This Master Plan is for the citizens. The last plan was done in 1997 in terms of comprehensive plan and was updated in 2005 with a focus just on the east side and then was updated in 2009.

Alderman Mwilambwe stated one of the things that is really important to him is diversity, and we are much more diverse than we were 20 years ago. He also wanted to be sure that we think about duplication to try to avoid that given what Normal has. He stated that he had noticed that it is very difficult during the winter to get space for different sports. We need to think about all the possibilities that we can accommodate and then we can discuss funding later.

Motion by Alderman Black, seconded by Alderman Buragas that the Professional Services Contract with GreenPlay, LLC for Professional Planning and Consulting Services related to the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Arts Comprehensive Master Plan in the amount not to exceed \$114,999.00 be approved and the City Manager and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Alderman Fruin stated he is very supportive of Scott's motion and plans to vote for it, and would promote doing a joint comprehensive parks study with the Town of Normal. If we are going to progress, I think we need to do things together.

Alderman Black stated the neighborhood around there wants to see something major done with O'Neal pool and put his plug in again for a wave pool.

Alderman Lower stated that looking into the future, that the private sector will be considered when it comes to one of these large areas.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Lower, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: None.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 8F: Consideration of an Ordinance approving a Contract to purchase the four (4) parking lots owned by Frontier Communications south of the BCPA and east of East Street. (Presentation by David Hales, City Manager and Austin Grammer, Economic Development Coordinator 5 minutes, Council discussion 10 minutes.)

Mr. Hales thanked Mr. Grammer for all his work and many others as we bring forth tonight a purchase agreement with Frontier Communications to acquire some very significant parcels which are critical not only for parking our BCPA and Creativity Center but also tie-in with our comprehensive plan as it looks down the road on multiple uses for some of these properties in and around the northeast quadrant of the downtown.

Mr. Grammer stated the four lots are a combined total around 165 parking spaces as presently configured. Research and conversations with BCPA staff indicate that there are currently only 100 parking spaces on city-owned lots that service the BCPA. Eight-six of those spaces are in the Creativity Center parking lot just north of the BCPA. We definitely have a parking deficit for the BCPA. On of the main complaints of patrons of the BCPA is the lack of parking or the considerable distance that they have to walk.

ORDINANCE 2017 - 32

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONTRACT TO PURCHASE COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE LOCATED AT 206 DOUGLAS STREET, 509 N. EAST STREET, 209 DOUGLAS STREET AND 222 E. MARKET STREET, ALL IN BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Motion by Alderman Schmidt, seconded by Alderman Black, the Ordinance approving a contract to purchase commercial real estate located at 206 Douglas Street, 509 N. East Street, 209 Douglas Street and 222 E. Market Street, all in Bloomington, Illinois, be approved and the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: None.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 8G: Fiscal Year 2017 Year End Budget Amendment and Ordinance. (Presentation by David Hales, City Manager and Patti-Lynn Silva, Finance Director 5 minutes, and Council discussion 5 minutes.)

Mr. Hales stated because FY17 also represents the end of the first year with our coliseum being managed by VenuWorks, which is a critical transitional or foundational year for the change in management, so we did want to bring to your attention what that general fund financial assistant has been to the coliseum this past year which is one of those significant budget amendments.

ORDINANCE NO. 2017 – 33

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2017

Motion by Alderman Painter, seconded by Alderman Black that the Budget Amendment is approved and the Ordinance is passed, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary documents.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Lower, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Navs: None.

Motion carried.

The following was presented:

Item 8H: Consideration of a Resolution authorizing City staff to pursue a Washington Street Amendment to the 2015 City of Bloomington Bicycle Master Plan. (*Presentation by David Hales, City Manager 5 minutes, and Council discussion 5 minutes*.

Mr. Karch stated that two years ago Council approved the City of Bloomington Bike Master Plan, the first one is still in existence. Since that time, the Council has continued to support progressive movement in an expedient manner to move forward with bike accommodations within the City. The issue we are talking about tonight is amending this plan.

Alderman Lower asked when the last date that Washington Street was resurfaced.

Mr. Karch stated it is hodge-podge all across Washington. Over by Veterans Parkway that has been a long time.

Alderman Buragas stated that this particular plan in some areas will not require any resurfacing to accomplish and would just require putting additional lines on the pavement.

RESOLUTION NO. 2017 – 18

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CITY STAFF TO PURSUE A WASHINGTON STREET AMENDMENT TO THE 2015 CITY OF BLOOMINGTON BICYCLE MASTER PLAN

Motion by Alderman Buragas, seconded by Alderman Black that the Resolution authorizing City staff to pursue a Washington Street Amendment to the 2015 City of Bloomington Bicycle Master Plan be adopted and the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Mayor Renner directed the Clerk to call the roll which resulted in the following:

Ayes: Aldermen Sage, Mwilambwe, Buragas, Painter, Black, Schmidt and Fruin.

Nays: Alderman Lower

Motion carried.

9. City Manager's Discussion

Mr. Hales congratulated Ms. Cherry Lawson and her graduation from the Multicultural Leadership Program. She was also a graduate of a recent Bloomington 101. A week from tonight we do have the swearing in ceremony. He thanked all the staff for their efforts.

10. Mayor's Discussion

Mayo	or Renner	r thanked	and congra	atulated Ms.	Cherry	Lawson for b	eing so inv	olved i	n so
many differ	ent ways	to really	learn the	community	. He	congratulated	Alderman	Fruin	and
Alderman L	ower for	all their w	ork.						

11. City Aldermen's Discussion

Alderman Fruin welcomed the new Council members. He thanked Mr. Hales for his leadership and the team. He wished his colleagues, Council members and the Mayor the best. It is a very difficult job with tough decisions.

Alderman Sage thanked the staff for what they do.

Alderman Lower encouraged anyone who has the ability to get involved in public service. We have an excellent staff and a wonderful community.

12. Executive Session – Cite Section

13. Adjournment

Motion made by Alderman Schmidt, seconded by Alderman Painter, to adjourn the meeting at 9:14 p.m.

Motion carried (viva voce).

CITY OF BLOOMINGTON	ATTEST
Tari Renner, Mayor	Cherry L. Lawson, City Clerk